
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 
SAMNU~N 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
ti i FORSYTH STREET 

ATI.ANTA GEORGIA }()}{I3~g960 

r.WV 30 2011
Cl;.&T1FIED MAIL 
.Il-ETURN RECEIPT REQl,JJ,STED 

Mr. Jim Shillito 
Water-Way Inc. 
151 County Road 989 
luka, Mississippi 38852 

SUBJECT: 	 Water-Way Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA-04-2012-200I{b) 

Dear Mr. Shill!to: 

Enclosed please timl an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order that resolves the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act uf 1986 matte, (Docket Ku. EPCRA-04-2012­
200 I (b)) involving Water-Way, Inc. The CAFO was filed wlth the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required 
by 40 CF.R. Part 22 and became effective ou the date ufthe filing. 

Also enclosed~ please find a copy ofthe "Notice ofSecurities and Exchange Commission Registmnts' 
Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on notice of your 
potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission any environmental enforcement 
actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency. If you have any questions with reg<.U'us to the 
SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you may refer to the contact phone number at the bottOIll 
ofthe SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions, please call Ms. Erika White at (404) 562-9195. 

ncr, Chief 
eRA Enforcement Section 

Endosures 

!'l!erl"et Addrws (URL) .. hrtp1!wv.1J"-,~pa.go\i 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

::r E "" 
I'Tl IT1IN THE MATTER OF: 	 ) :I> i!5 il1::o ..,) 	 '" -= ",,"'"

Water-Way Inc. 	 l Docket Kumber: EPCRA-04-2012-2001i Q me")

or!!) 	 C") ". -<: r 0",Respondent 	 ) ,..., :>: Zo 
) ::0: 

":::' ------_.... 	 ..,. '<­'" -CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. Nature of the Action 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 325 of the Emergency 
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 42 U.S.C. § 11045, and pursuant to the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment ofCivil Penalties and 
the RevocationlI'ermination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codIfied at 40 
C.F.R, Part 22. Complainant is the Dircctorofthc Air, Pesticides and Toxics Managt,'1llent 
Division~ Region 4, United States Environmental Protcction Agency (EPA). Respondent is 
Water-Way Inc, 

2, Complmnant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose ofsettlement 
pUIljuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefure, without the taking of any evidence or 
testlmony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication ofany issue in this matter. and in 
accordance with 40 C.E.R. § 22.13(h) and 22.18(h), this Conseot Agreement and Final Order 
(CAPO) win simultaneously oonuncnce.and conclude this matter. 

II. Preliminary Statements 

3. The authority to take action under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045, is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
under EPCRA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 22-3-A, dated May 11, 1994. 
The Regional Administrator. Region 4, has redelegated this authority to the Director, Air, 
Pesticides and Toxies Management Division, by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22-3~At dated 
November 8, 1994, Pursuant to that delegation, the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Taxies 
Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action as the Complainant 
in this matter. 

4, Respondent is Water~Way Inc,. a cDfl'Oration doing business in the State of 
Mississippi. 

S. Respondent is a "person" as defined in Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 11049(7). 



6. Respondent owns and operates a "facility" as that term is defined by Section 
329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 1\049(4). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at 751 County Road 989 Tuka, Mississippi. 

Ill. EPA's Allegation of Violation 

Violation of EPCRA Section 313 

8. Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22 and 372.30, 
require the owner or operator of a facility that (a) has 10 or more full-time employees; (b) is in a 
Standard Industrial Classilication (SIC) major group or industry listed in 40 C.F.R. § 372.23(0) 
for which the corresponding North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) subsector 
and industry codes are listed in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.23(b) and 372.23(c)); and (c) manufactured, 
processed, or otherwise used a toxic chemical listed in Section 313(c) and 40 C.P.R. § 372.65, in 
excess of an applicable threshold quantity established under EPCRA Section 313(f) and sct forth 
in 40 C.P.R. § 372.25, during the calendar year, to complete and submit a toxic chemical release 
inventory reporting Form R (EPA Form 9350-1) to the Administrator of EPA and to the State in 
which the facility is located, by July I for the preceding calendar year for each toxic chemical 
known by the owner or operator to be manufactured, processed, or otherwise used in quantities 
exceeding the established threshold quantity during the preceding calendar year. 

9. As set forth at EPCRA Section 313(1) and 40 C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting 
threshold amount for a toxic chemical manufactured or processed at a facility is 25,000 pounds 
per calendar year. The reporting threshold tor a toxic chemical otherwise used at a facility is 
10,000 pounds. 

10. Respondent has 10 or more full-time employees, as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 372.3 
at its facility. 

II. Respondent's facility is classified under SIC code 3713 and the NAICS code 
336211. 

12. Respondent's facility is classified in a covered SIC code as described at 40 C.F.R. 
§ 372.22 and in a covered NAICS code as described at 40 C.F.R. § 372.23. 

13. Styrene is a toxic chemical listed under EPCRA Section 313(c) and 40 C.F.R. § 
372.65. 

14. Respondent's facility othCIWise used styrene in excess of the 10,000 pound 
threshold quantity during calendar year 2009. 

15. Respondent failed to submit a Fonn R or a Fonn A for styrene to the 
Administrator of EPA and to the official designated by the Governor of the State of Mississippi 
by July I of the required reporting year. 
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16, EPA alleges that Respondent violated the reporting requirements of Section 3lJ 
of EPCRA, 42 U,S,C, § 11023, at its facility for calendar year 2009, and is therefure sul:\ject to 
the assessment of penalties under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U,S,c' § 11045, 

17. Pursuant to Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U,S,C, § 11045(c), and 40 C,F,R, Part 
19, EPA may assess a civil penalty of not more than $37,500 for each violation of Section 313 
that OCCUlTed after January 12,2009, Each day a violation of Section 313 continues constitutes a 
separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 L:.S.C. § 11045(0), may 
be assessed by an Administrative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreerm~! 

18. For the purposes of this CAPO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional .lIegatiOlL< 
sd out above but ncltha' admits n()f denies the factual allegations set out above. 

19. RespOJident waives any right to contest the allegations and itl> right to appeal the 
proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

20, Respondent consents to the assessment ofand agrees to pay the civil panalty as 
set forth in this CAFO, 

2l. Respondent certifies that as of the date of its execution Qfthis CAF01 it I::; in 
compliance with all relevant requirements of EPCRA at the facility. 

')') Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegalions of violations contained 
herein. This CAPO shall not otherwise affect any liability of Respondent to the United Slates 
other than a9 expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforct.mcnt action against Respondent fur a violation of any federal or state statute, regulation 
or pennit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangennent. or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

23. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement ofthis matter is in the public int~i and that this 
CAPO is ¢OIlsislent wilh the applicable requirements ofEPCRA. 

V. Final Order 

24. Respandent shan pay a civil peredty ofONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED 
NlNETY DOLLARS ($1,890), for the violations alleged in Section Hi. Payment shall be paid 
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAPO, 

25. Respondent shall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check, 
payable to 'Treasurer, United States of America." 10 one of the following addresses: 
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By Mail: By Ov~.I!h!: 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency u.s. Bank 
Fines and Penalties 1005 Convention Plaza 
Cincinnati Finance Center Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
P.O. Box 979077 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 
SL Louis, Missouri 63197-9000 

Tho check ,hall reference on its face the name and the J)Qckel Number of the CAfO. 

26. At the time ofpayment, Respondent shall .... '11d a separate copy of the check, and a 
written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, to the foUowing 
persons at the fuUowing addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
u.s. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanm, Georgia 30303 

Erika White 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgi. 30303 

SaundJ Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmenta1 Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street. S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

27. For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant 10 this CAfO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments 'hall 
constitute a violation of this CAFO. 

28. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA i, entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost Qfproce5sing and handling a 
delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue on the civil penalty from the effective 
date ofthis CAFO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will he assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary ofTreasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. A charge will be 
assessed to cover the costs of debt collection, including processing and handling costs and 
attorney foes. In edditioIl, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of d,. debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

29. Complainant and Respondent shaH bear their own CQsts and attorney fees in this 
matter. 



30. Th1S CAFO shalt be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

31. The following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron B. Falconer 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides.& Toxic Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-8451 

32. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is fully authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALL Y LEFT BLANK 
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VI. Effective Date 

33. The effective date of this eAFO shall be the date upon which the CAFO is filed 
,vith the Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED A:>ID CONSENTED TO: 

Water-

Date: \ I / I'D tilBy: 
rMf. Jim SlHllito 
Gen~al Manager 

U.S. Environmental Prote on Age cy 

By: id~y~Hf.'.Bani~'QstiJ, 
, 

D~irecto~~ Date: 10p1/11 
r'l Pesticides & Toxics :JV 


agement Division 

Region 4 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this . .2011. 

~ ... t1. ~ 
~B. Schuh 

Regional Judicial Officer 

6 




CERIIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

C"nsent Agreement and Final Order: 10 the Matter of Water-Way Inc.,Rocket Number EPCRA­

24:~Q12-200 lIb), on !he parties listed below in the mallller indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA's internal mail) 
u.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office ofEnvironmental Ac\..'Ountability 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

Mr. Jim Shillito (Via Certified !vIail- Return Receipt Requested) 
Water-Way Inc. 
751 County Road 989 
[uk., MS 38852 

Date: " {{-36-JI ~~11]~
Belinda Johnson, Actmg Regional Hearing ClerK 
United States Environmental £4 A 

Protection Agency, Region 4 ~! 
Atlanta FedcrnJ C<mter 
61 Forsyth Stree~ S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-95 t 1 
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